
 

Page 1 of 14 
 

TRANSPONDER MANAGEMENT & 
FULFILLMENT 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

Addendum No. 1 
Issued March 1, 2024 

This is an addendum to the Transponder Management & Fulfillment Request for Proposals (RFP) offered 
by the North Carolina Turnpike Authority.  
 
Prospective Respondents: You are hereby notified of the following information in regard to the referenced 
RFP: 

• Section A - Official log of Proposers’ questions and NCTA’s responses 
• Section B – Official revisions to the Transponder Management & Fulfillment RFP 

   
All other terms, conditions and requirements of the original RFP dated February 8, 2024, remain 
unchanged unless modified by this Addendum.  
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Below are the answers to questions submitted in response to the above referenced RFP.  
 

#   Page   Section   Section Description   Proposer Question   NCTA Response   
1.  

NCTA 
Transponder 

RFP 1.0:  
PDF page 28  

Section 
3.2.1a  

Part 1, Page 
23 of 31  

“All Sections listed in 
Table 1-2 (Cover Letter, 

Executive Summary, 
Proposal Sections 1 – 7) 
shall be a separate *.pdf 

file.”  

Are the deliverable PDFs a single large 
PDF file or 9 individual PDF files, one 
per each row of Table 1-2?  

RFP Part I, Section 3.2, Item #1 
states: “All Sections listed in Table 1-
2 shall be a separate .pdf file.”.   

2.  

N/A  N/A  General Question  

Retail package pricing is included in the 
E-ZPass contract. How will these be 
reconciled if pricing in the RFP response 
differs?  

Unless NCTA requirements differ 
from the E-ZPass contract 
requirements, both values should 
match. NCTA has also requested 
‘optional style’ pricing which was not 
part of the E-ZPass contract.   

3.  

Part I, pg. 17  2. Schedule  Table I-1: Procurement 
Schedule  

Would NCTA extend the proposal due 
date to April 15th?  

Yes. Per this Addendum 01, NCTA 
has pushed out the Procurement 
Schedule dates, which includes the 
Technical Proposal due date 
extension to April 15, 2024 by 4:00 
PM EST.  
 
Note: To see all schedule updates, 
please reference the latest version of 
the RFP on the NCTA Connect Site.    

4.  

Part I, pg. 17  2. Schedule  Table I-1: Procurement 
Schedule  

Would NCTA allow for a second round of 
clarifying questions?  

Per this Addendum 01, NCTA has 
modified the Procurement Schedule. 
It now includes a second round of 
Proposer Questions due on March 11, 
2024 by 4:00 PM EST.  
  
Note: To see all schedule updates, 
reference the latest version of the RFP 
on the NCTA Connect Site.    

https://connect.ncdot.gov/business/Turnpike/Pages/Transponder-RFP.aspx
https://connect.ncdot.gov/business/Turnpike/Pages/Transponder-RFP.aspx
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#   Page   Section   Section Description   Proposer Question   NCTA Response   
5.  

Part I, pg. 17  
3.1 Content 
of Technical 

Proposal  

Table 1-2: Technical 
Proposal Page 
Limitations  

May vendors include a title page and table 
of contents at the beginning of the 
proposal that do not count against any 
page limitations?  

Yes.  

6.  

Part I, pg. 21  
3.1 Content 
of Technical 

Proposal  

F. Proposal Section 4: 
Approach to Operations 

Implementation  

Would NCTA allow user level access to 
their current back office system to 
facilitate direct data entry of transponder 
assignments and tacking information?  

NCTA expects all data entry via API. 
Additional data exchange elements 
can be finalized during the ICD 
design phase.   

7.  

Part I, 22 of 31  
3.1 Content 
of Technical 

Proposal  

G. Proposal Section 5: 
Approach to Managing 

Program Growth, 
Quality, Continuous 
Improvement, Cost 

Control, and Innovation  

Is there a certain number of retailers that 
are anticipated?  

NCTA does not have an estimated 
number of Retailers at this time. 
NCTA’s goal is to work with the 
successful Proposer (‘Contractor’) 
upon Contract award to develop a 
marketing and roll-out plan that will 
initially call for starting small and 
adding retailers smartly.   

8.  

Part III, pg. 12  
4.1 

Transponder 
Fulfillment  

Requirement ID #75  

Packaging is to be approved by NCTA.  
As prices may vary greatly depending on 
the agency requirements, will these be 
selected prior to the price phase?  

In Attachment 4, NCTA has provided 
mock-ups of the generic packaging 
expected to be used and priced for 
this RFP. NCTA Approval will 
mainly be needed for the graphics 
and/or presentation of the packaging 
for these generic packages. The 
Proposer is also encouraged to 
provide ‘optional style’ packaging 
concepts which will require more in-
depth NCTA Approval. While the 
Proposer will be required to provide 
pricing for any ‘optional style’ 
packaging, the per unit pricing for 
these optional styles will not be 
factored into the Proposer’s pricing 
and will be discussed as needed.  
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#   Page   Section   Section Description   Proposer Question   NCTA Response   
9.  

Part III, pg. 12  
4.1 

Transponder 
Fulfillment  

Requirement ID #77  

The Contractor shall be reimbursed for all 
distribution costs between NC Quick Pass 
storefronts and Retailers, including 
postage, as pass-through costs. What will 
be considered a pass through?   

NCTA will reimburse the Contractor 
for preapproved expenses to ship and 
deliver transponder inventory to 
authorized Retailers. Shipping 
methods will be determined with 
Contractors.  

10.  

Part III, pg. 15  

5. Retail 
Distribution 

of 
Transponders  

Retail Distribution of 
Transponders  

Would NCTA please clarify financial 
arrangements: - In the retail environment, 
who purchases transponders from 
manufacturers?  
- Who do retailers pay and on what terms 
for inventory?  

The Retailer orders transponders from 
NCTA, pays for them to NCTA, and 
then ‘re-sells’ the transponders to the 
public. The Contractor will be 
sending the prepackaged transponders 
to the Retailers – like a ‘wholesaler’.   

11.  

Part III, Pg. 20  

10.1 
Performance 
Measurement 

and 
Liquidated 
Damages  

Performance 
requirements  

Please reconsider KPI requirements of 
100%, as this value is unrealistic in many 
cases as several have no time limits and 
no allowance for outside issues, such as 
delayed inventory by others, mail issues, 
supply chain issues (COVID), etc.    

The KPIs will remain unchanged. 
There are four KPIs that specifically 
require 100%:  

• P1(B) - Customer 
fulfillment timeliness  
• P2 – Customer fulfillment 
accuracy  
• P5 – Retail fulfillment 
timeliness  
• P6 – Returned item 
timeliness  

  
NCTA has structured the KPIs to 
emphasize the need for prompt and 
accurate customer service. NCTA 
understands there are, on occasion, 
circumstances outside the 
Contractor’s control that will prevent 
the Contractor from achieving 100% 
compliance. In those cases, the 
Contractor shall request a KPI waiver 
after documenting the exception 
circumstances or conditions that led 
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#   Page   Section   Section Description   Proposer Question   NCTA Response   
to the Contractor’s missing the KPI. 
NCTA will not unreasonably 
withhold waiver approvals.  

12.  

Part III, Pg. 22  

Performance 
Measurement 

and 
Liquidated 
Damages  

P.6 Undeliverable 
Transponders  

The current API provided in the RFP does 
not address the ability to update a 
fulfillment as returned from the shipping 
carrier. This prevents any automation 
around reporting the bad address to the 
NC CBOS, and any ability to resolve bad 
addresses that are provided to the 
Contractor by external parties. Is there a 
plan to update the API to enable this 
information to be sent back to the CBOS 
to clear a returned transponder?  

NCTA expects all data entry via API. 
Additional data exchange elements 
can be finalized during the ICD 
design phase.  

13.  

Part IV  All  Terms and Conditions  

Would the agency consider restructuring 
the contract to be more in line with a 
services program; with material changes 
to the ownership/intangible rights, 
warranty/performance matters, revenue 
loss, contractor coordination, defects, 
guaranty, and other similar 
provisions?  The current contract would 
need substantial modification to create a 
commercially reasonable services-based 
contract.  

Per this Addendum 01, NCTA has 
removed provisions deemed not 
applicable to a services program.  
  
Note: To see these changes, reference 
the latest version of the RFP on the 
NCTA Connect Site.    

14.  

12  1.3 NCTA 
Toll Program  

NC Quick Pass Back 
Office System 

Technology and 
Operations  

Can the successful vendor request 
improvements made in the CBOS to make 
it more user friendly?  

This request is unrelated to the 
Transponder Management & 
Fulfillment RFP Scope of Work.  

15.  

59  
4.1 

Transponder 
Fulfillment  

Requirements 76 and 77  

What is the postage process requested? 
Are vendors expected to handle all 
packaging for shipping in-house?  

With regard to postage, the Proposer 
shall outline clearly in their response 
how they intend to perform the Work 
required of this RFP, including 
shipping services. If the successful 
Proposer (‘Contractor’) will be 

https://connect.ncdot.gov/business/Turnpike/Pages/Transponder-RFP.aspx
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#   Page   Section   Section Description   Proposer Question   NCTA Response   
performing in-house shipping, then a 
prefunded postage account is 
preferred, and the Contractor shall 
mange this postage account balance 
as required by the RFP. If the 
Contractor will be utilizing a third-
party shipper, then the postage 
process may be via pass-through 
expenses to NCTA. Ultimately 
NCTA is seeking the most cost-
effective process that ensures timely 
receipt of transponders by our 
customers. Upon Contract award, 
NCTA and the Contractor will 
finalize these details.   

16.  
63  

6 Retail 
Transponder 
Packaging  

  
Does NCTA intend this vendor to be 
involved in the activation of transponders 
at any point?  

No. The activation can be done 
through the NC Quick Pass website or 
by NC Quick Pass CSC operator.   

17.  

      

Are the retailers / LPAs responsible for 
inventory counts and physical 
management once inventory is received 
on-site?  

Yes.   
  

18.  

n/a  n/a  n/a  

Are there strategies in place to raise 
awareness of the transponders presence in 
retail stores to help increase the adoption 
rate and use of the transponder?  

Yes. There will be marketing 
campaigns to accomplish both.  

19.  n/a  n/a  n/a  How many retail stores are expected?  Please refer to the response for 
Question #7.  

20.  

n/a  n/a  n/a  

How can a retail store qualify to become 
authorized to sell the transponder?  

NCTA is expecting Proposers for this 
RFP to be well-versed in engaging 
retailers. NCTA will work with the 
successful proposer in developing a 
marketing plan which will include the 
retailer criteria. At a minimum, the 
expectation is that the Retailer serves 
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#   Page   Section   Section Description   Proposer Question   NCTA Response   
a customer base shared with NC 
Quick Pass, has retail space available, 
and system functionality to process 
payments and manage inventory.   

21.  

n/a  n/a  n/a  

What will be the process in place for the 
retail store to purchase and replenish their 
inventory, is it online or facilitated 
through a fulfillment group at the call 
center?  

The process for Retailers to purchase 
transponders will be facilitated 
through the Back-Office system. The 
Contractor will be trained on the 
process in order to train Retailers to 
use this function to request additional 
transponders. The expectation is that 
orders placed will be fulfilled by the 
Contractor.   

22.  
n/a  n/a  n/a  

Will the technology and processes used to 
activate and register the transponders 
remain the same?  

Yes.   
  

23.  

n/a  n/a  n/a  

Is the retail store going to be trained on 
handling customer service queries related 
to the transponder or will this remain as 
per the current process?  

NCTA does not expect Retailers to 
handle account management of NC 
Quick Pass accounts. Retailers will 
have the opportunity to sell 
transponders.   

24.  

n/a  n/a  n/a  

Will the retail store get a refund for 
defective sticker tags (transponders)? If 
yes, is the current system capable of 
facilitating this transaction?  

The current process with the NCTA 
transponder manufacturer does not 
require replacement of defective 
transponders. Instead, the 
manufacturer supplies an overage of 
2% to each sticker order placed. 
NCTA expects the Contractor to 
develop SOPs to establish procedures 
for Retailers to replace defective 
stickers to customers that purchased 
the transponder from that location.     

25.  
n/a  n/a  n/a  

Can the tags be sold at a different price by 
the retail store compared to the price set 
by NCTA?  

Yes. However, NCTA will set the 
maximum sale price for the 
transponder.  
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#   Page   Section   Section Description   Proposer Question   NCTA Response   
26.  

n/a  n/a  n/a  

Is there a current process in place to work 
with the manufacturer or is this managed 
outside of the scope of this RFP?   
*Interested in understanding if there is a 
requirement to work directly with the 
manufacturer. The process specifically we 
are asking to confirm is whether there’s a 
process in scope, or considered for 
transponders that might be defective 
(DOA) and need to be returned to the 
transponder manufacturer.    

Yes. NCTA expects the Contractor to 
coordinate with the manufacturer for 
transponder orders placed on behalf 
of NCTA. SOPs for defective 
transponders will be developed based 
on manufacturer requirements.   

27.  

n/a  n/a  n/a  

Will there be any restrictions as to how 
the tags will be positioned in the retail 
store? Will it be accessible to everyone 
that walks in or locked in a safe location 
to prevent theft etc.?  

NCTA will use the recommendation 
and expertise of the Contractor to 
make the final decision on these 
areas.   
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REVISIONS: Following are the revisions to the RFP documents (Deletions are shown in red 
text strikeout mode and additions are in red underlined text).     
 
1) RFP cover page has been modified as follows:  
 

 
 
2) Part I Administrative, Section 2.1 Schedule, Table 1-1: Procurement Schedule has been modified as 

follows:   
Table I-1: Procurement Schedule 
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3) Part IV Terms and Conditions, Section 1.6.1 has been modified as follows:  

 

4) Part IV Terms and Conditions, Section 1.6.2 Intellectual Proposer Warranty and Indemnity 
has been fully removed: see below.  
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5) Under Part IV Terms and Conditions, Section 1.6, the subsection ‘Data Accuracy’ has been 
renumbered to now be Section 1.6.2; see below.  

 

6) The last two subsections found under Part IV Terms and Conditions, Section 1.6, have been 
removed; see below.  
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7) The introduction paragraph under Part IV Terms and Conditions, Section 3.6 has been 
removed; see below.  

 

8) Part IV Terms and Conditions, Section 3.6.1 Patent, Copyright, and Trade Secret Protection 
has been removed; see below.  
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9) Due to the removal of the Section above, Section 3.6.2 Data Security, found under Part IV 
Terms and Conditions, has been renumbered to be Section 3.6.1 Data Security; see below.  
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10) In Exhibit A: Project Implementation Schedule, two (2) Projected Start dates were 
modified as follows:  

a. *Note: For the latest version, reference the Exhibits – Addendum 01 document found 
on the NCTA Connect Site.  

 

 

https://connect.ncdot.gov/business/Turnpike/Pages/Transponder-RFP.aspx

